STATE OF NEW MEXICO
'COUNTY OF SAN MIGUEFL,
FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

"NO. CV-2004-445

ARTHUR E. VARGAS, as Personal Representative of

the Wrongful Death Estate of CODY UTLEY, TRESA KOSEC,
individually, BRIONA KOSEC, individually, THOMAS UTLEY,
- Individually, DAVID PLOTSKY, as Guardian Ad Litem for
CRAIG HOPKINS, and TINA LUCERQO, individually,

Plaintiffs,
V.

BRIDGESTONB/FIRESTONE, INC,, a foreign corporation,

/k/a THE FIRESTONE TIRE AND RUBBER COMPANY, and
BUMPER TO BUMPER AUTO SALVAGE, a New Mexico corporation
andfor sole proprietorship, : : ,

Defendants.
- DENNIS MONTOYA, ESQ.’S MOTION TO RECUSE OR DISQUALIFY

THIS COURT FROM HEARING PETITION FOR FORFEITURE
OF FEES AND DISGORGEMENT OF FEES RECEIVED AND OTHER MOTIONS

Introduction
f
On May 1, 2006, the Court has set a hearing on Kathleen Oakey’s Petition for Forfeiture
of Fees and Disgorgement of Fees Recéived (“Petition™), which was filed less than three weeks
ago. The Court has asked the parties to submit proposed ﬁhdings of fact and conclusions of law
on the Petition, aﬂd intends to hold a one-day bench trial on the issues raised therein. The
Petition asks the Court to find and c_onclude, among other things, thét (1) Dennis Montoya, as

counsel for Plaintiffs in the above-referenced case, acted in wtter disregard for the interests of the

minor child, Thomas Utley; (2) Dennis Montoya misrepresented facts to the Court and to




s i
Sa—-

Ms. Oakey and (3) Thomas Utley lost monies due to }nm as a result of the alleged negligence
and breaches of fiduciary duty by Mr. Montoya. See Petition, attached as Exhibit D,

This Court, however, is the complaining party in a January 31, 2008 disciplinary board
complaint against Mr. Montoya with respect to thé very same allegations that have been raised
by Ms. Oakey. A copy of the disciplinary board complaint is attached és Exhibit C. The
disciplinary board comp]éint makes clear that the Court already has Judged the merits of the
Petition and, therefore, should recuse from this case. For instance, the Court states in the
&iscipiinary board complaint that “Mr, Montoya’s actions throughout the various matters . . .
have been with utter dfsregard for . .. Thomas Utley.” Thg Court also refers tc; “the multiple
fabrications conceived by Mr. Montoya and his complete failuze to instruct . . . as to how the
rhonies should have been paid. See Ex. C, at pages 11-13. The Court goes on to state that “this is
4 situation whére a minor had no protection from his lawyers and lost vjrrtuaHy all the money due
him as a result of the unfortunate death of his father.” Id. Cjearly, th-e Céurt has become
embroiled in the controversy surrounding Mr. 'Montoya’s representation of Plaintiffs in the
-above-captioned case.

The undersigned counsel éttempted to seek the concurrence of the other parties prior to
filing this motion, and also sought the oooperation of the other paniés in bringing this matter. to
the attention of the Court informally and without the need to file a formal motion. Counsel for -
BndgestonefFlrestone Mr. Arthur Beach, takes no position on the matter and waived appearance
at an informal conference. Counsel for Ms. Oakey refused to allow this maiter to be heard
informally by the Court and indicafed opposmoﬁ to the motion. See William Riordan letier,

attached as Exhibit E. In so doing, counsel for Ms. Ozkey accused the undersigned of -




skullduggery. To make the record very clear, the undersigned holds this Court in the highest
regard, and files this motion solely for the reasons stated above.
| Background

This lawsuit originates from the death of Cody Utley on Noven.abar 5, 2002, when he was'
killed in a motor vehicle accident while travei]inig on Interstate 40 in the vicinity of Tucumecari,
New Mexico. On October 28, 2004, Arthur Vargas, as Personal Representative of the W{ongful
Death Estate of Cody Utley, filed an Amended Complaint against Bridgestone/Firestone, Inc.
(“Bridgestone™) and Bumper to Bumper Auto Salvage (“Bmﬁper to Bumper”) in the fouﬁ‘h
Judicial District of New Mexico, seeking damages for the wrongful death of Cody Utley. The
Amended Complaint alleged causes of action for strict liability, negligence, misrepresentation,
breach of the implied warranty of merchantability, breach of the iﬁlp]ied warranty of fitness for a
plarticular purpose, unfair trade practices, and loss of consortium, In addition, Tresa Kosec,
Brionna Kosec, Craig Hopkins, Tina Lucero, and Thomas Uﬂéy were named as Plaintiffs.
Plaintiffs are c‘oileétive}y Tepresented by, Montoya and Ronald Adamson, Esq. (“Adamson™),

Prior 1o filing their Amended Cdmplaint, Plaintiffs.; scttled their claim with Prudential
Finaricial (“Prudential”), the decedent’s life insurance carrier. The life inéuiance proceeds
totaled $73,790.80, and were paid on June 20, 2003. ]£n addition, a workman’s compensatipn
complamt was vﬁled against Liberty Mutual Insurance Group/Key Energy (“‘Liberty”) on
November 3, 2003. Several months later, a setilement with Liben}; was reached in thé amount of
$55,000.00. rThis lawsuit was filed several months after receipt of the funds from Lil;erty.

After the filing of this lawsuit, at or around November 2005, Plaintiffs settled their c]aim_s
against Bumper to Burﬁper in the amount of $97,500.00: Court approval regarding this

settlement was not sought, In addifion, Plaintiffs settled their claims against Bridgestore in July,




2007, in the amount of $550,000.00. . The parties sought court approval of this setAt]ement and
agreed to the appointment of F. Michael Hart 1o act as the Guardian ad Litem for minor Thomas
Kosec (“Thomas”).

On September 14, 2007, due to a potential conflict with Mr., Hart, this Court terminated

Mr. Hart as the Guardian ad Litem, and appointed Kathleen Oakey as thée Guardian ad Litem for
Thomas. Ms. Oakey, in her official ‘capaeity as an aym of the Court, then commenced an
investigation regarding the distribution of funds previously obtained in the case, including the
settlement with Prudential, Liberty, and Bumper fo Bumper. Mr. Montoya believes that during
th1s period of time Ms. Qakey met with Judge Vanzi and dxscussed the ongoing investigation a
number of times. |

‘ A new hearing date was set for October 3, 2007, and was then later reset for December 3,

2007 in order to permit Ms. Qakey to complete her investigation regarding the settlement and
distribution of the funds. During the hearing on December 3, 2007, Ms. Oakesf repfesented that
her investigation had revealed that the proceeds ob_tained from Prudential, Liberty, and Bumper
to Bumnper had been spent by Plaintiff Tresa Kosec and no portion had been allocated to the

) Estate of Cody Utley or Thomas. At the hearmg, Judge Linda Vanzi entered a formal Judlmal

ﬁndlng that the amount of the settlement with Bridgestone/Fi;restone was reasonable for the

wrongful death of Cody Utley, and was ‘accepted, but stated to Montoya thet, based on

Ms. Oakey’s investigation and statements, she had “very serious eoneerns about what has taken

place in this lawsuit and with the proposed settlements.” See Tr. (Dec. 3, 2007), relevant

portions aftached as Ex. A, at 36. Moreover, Judge Vanzi found that there was a “serious

problem with the allocation, however, and the distribution [of the settlement funds].” Id. Fudge




Vanzi also stated that it was her belief that Montoya and Adamson had, “corhpletely dismissfed]
a child’s interest.™ Id at 37.

Shortly thereafter, on Januvary 22, 2008, Kathleen Oakey, as the Guardian ad Litemn and
Conservator of the Estate of Thomas Utley, a minor, filed a separate Complaint for Attorney
Malpractice, Breach of Fiduciary Duty and Breach of Contract (“Oakey Complaint”) against
Montoya in a paralle]l action in the Second Judicial District, currently pending before Judge
Theodore Baca, CV-08-00676. See Oakey Compl.,, attached as Ex. B. She did not name
Adamson as a defendant, but later filed an identical lawsuit against Adamson in state court.

On January 31, 2008, Judge Linda Vanzi filed a' disciplinary board complaint against
Montoya and Adamson, alleging a multitude of ethical violations that Judge Linda Vanzi
believed were committed by Montoya and Adamson in this case, Spectifically, Judge Vanzi
stated in her disciplinary board complaint that:

Mr. Montoya’s actions throughout the various matters imvolving Cody Utley’s

Estate [had] been with utter disregard for Cody Utley’s only heir and minor

child, Thomas Utley.... The problems are so numerous that I am afraid this

letter only touches the tip of the iceberg. In addition to the multiple fabrications

conceived by Mr. Montoya, and his complete failure to instruct Ms. Kosec as to

how the monies should have been distributed, there are serious problems with

the attorneys’ fees and costs. ...

See letter from Judge L. Vanzi to Disciplinary Board of Jan. 31, 2008, atiached hereto as Ex. C,
at 11. Moreover, Judge Vanzi stated in her disciplinary board compl'aint that she was:
. .very concerned about Mr. Montoya’s actions in the state district court case

and in the Prudential Life, Probate and Workers Compensation proceedings. . . .

Indeed, Mr, Montoya has shown a disregard for the legal system, including the

courts, other attorneys, and the clients he supposedly represents. Further, Mr.

Montoya’s moral judgment and sense of ethics in protecting the interests of ten

year old Thomas Utley is, at the very least, questionable.

See id at 12-13,




Mr. Montoya, on F ebruary 12, 2008, filed a motion requesting that the Court aécept the
New Mexico Court of Appeals ruling that an attorney’s fee of 33 1/3% is reasonable and direct
tﬁe release of the altorney’s fees in this case. This motion is set for hearing on May 1, 2008,
together with a number of other motions. |

On April 3, 2003 Kathleen Oakey, in her capacity as the Guardian ad Litem and
Conservator for Thomas Utley, in the present case, by and through her attorney, William
Riordan, ﬁled. a Petition for Forfeiture of Fees and Disgorgement of Fees Received (“Petition”™)
against Montoya and Adamson, Ms. Oakey’s Petition contained duplicative claims to those that
she asserted in her complaint égainst Montoya for attorney malpractice filed on January 22,
2008. See Pet., attached as Ex. D hereto. specifically, in the Petition filed .by Ms. Oakey,
paragraphs 16 and 17, including all subparts, were identical to paragraphs 11, 13, and 15,
ilncluding subparts, found in the Oakey Complaint, currently pending in the Second Judicial
District. Indisputably, there are now two separate, unrelated cases containing duplicative claims
against Montoya fof attorney malpractice arising from the same.incident.

-The information this Court has discovered, together with the Court having become a
complaining party against Mr. Montoya, require that the Court recuse. This Court cannot hear
the Petition and other pending motions and remain impartial. Indeed, as no.ted below, this Court
has a']ready recused in other unrelated cases in which Mr. Montoya is counsel of r.ecord.I A copy

of this récusal brder 1s attached as Exhibit F.

! Judge Vanzi herself may have acknowledged that she is unable to maintain her objectivity where Mr. Montoya is
concerned, as she has, on April 4, 2008, recused herself from a case filed by a pro se litigant in 2007 after Mr:
Montoya entered his appearance. See Michael Angelo Padillav. Ron Torres, et al., Second Judicial District Court
Case No. D-202-CV-200707860.




As explained in more detail below, the fact that a judge whose impartiality might
reasonably be questioned mandates disqualification of that judge. For all of these reasons, this
Court cannot rule impartially on the Petition and other motions and should recuse from this case.

Argl_lment'and Authorities

1 This Court Should be Recused and/or Disqualified from Ruling on Mr. Montoya’s
and Ms. Oakey’s Petitions Because it Cannot Act Impartially as Evidenced by Prior
Findings Made Regarding Montoya in This Case and as Evidenced by the
Disciplinary Board Complaint Filed by Judge Vanzi.

a. This Court’s Impartiality Might Reasonably be Questioned, Mandating Recusal
Pursuant to New Mexico’s Code of Judicial Conduct, Rule 21-400.

Pursuant to the New Mexico Code of Judicial Conduct, a “judge 1s disqualified and shall
recuse himself or herself in a proceeding in which the judge’s impartiality might reasonably be
questioned.” Rule 21-400(A) NMRA.2 This mcludes, but is not limited to, instances in which
‘ ihe judge “has a personal bias or prejudice concerning a party. . .or personal knowledge of
disputed evidentiary facts concéming the proceeding.” Rule 21-400(A)(1) NMRA. Insofar as
recusal, “[a]t a minimum, a fair and impartial tribunal requires that the trier of fact be
disinterested and free from any form of bias orrpre‘dispositioln regarding the outcome of the
case.” Purpurav. Purpura, 115 N.M. 80, 83, 847 P.2d 314, 316 (CL. App. 1993) (quoting Reid
i -NMVBa’. of Examiners in Optometry, 92 N.M. 414, 416, 589 P.2d 198, 200 (1979)).

in determiqing whethef a fair and impartial tribunal _exi;'ts, the fest, as set out more fully
in Reid, is not whether the tribunal was “actually” p_rejudiced, but whether, “inthe natural course
of events, there is an indication of a possible temptation to an average man sitting as a judge to

try the case with bias for or against any issue presented to him.” /d. Finally, “if a judge becomes

% This Canon expands the instances in which a judge should disqualify himself or herself beyond those
circumstances set out in Article 1V, §18 of the New Mexico Constituticn (discussed further helow). United Nuclear
Corp. v. General Atomic Co., 96 N.M. 155, 250, 629 P.2d 231, 236 (1980). '




50 _emb.roi}ed in the controversy that he or she is unable to make a fair and objective decision, the
jﬁdge must recuse himself or herself.” Purpura, 115 N.M. at 84, 847 P.2d at 318.

In Misquez v. Baca (in re Byrnes), 132 N.M. 71 8, 54 P.3d 996 (Ct. Aép. 2002), the court
held that the judge’s inability to preside impartially mandated recusal when the judge had issued
an order to show cause one day after finding the plaintiff in contempt, and then proceeded in a
manner which infringed on the plaintiff’s due process righis. In that case, Byrnes, an attorney in
Las Cruces, New Mexico, was hired to represent a claimant in a custody dispute. During a
hearing, Byrnes repéatedly interrupted the judge, and was ultimately held in contempt and fined
$1,000. 00. Byrnes paid the fine and filed a notice of appeal. The fol]omng day, the same judge
1ssued Byrnes an order to show cause as to why he should not be suspended from practicing in
her division. At the hearing, the Judge presided and called four witnesses to testify against
By;ncs.

Ultimately, Bymes was suspended during the hearing. Bymés argued on appeal that the
same jﬁdge should not have presided-over the suspension hearing because she could not act
impartially. The-NeW Mexico Court of Appegls agreed, holding that the court proceeded in a
manner that infringed on Byrneé’ due process rights, The court further held that the judge
“bégan _the show-cause hearing by making definite findings before hearing any testimony,
indicating she was not neutral, but instead had a predisposition toward ruling against Bjmes.”
14 at 728-29, 54 P.3d at 1006-07.

i{ere, A]ike the judge’s impartiality in the Byrnes case, Jﬁdge Linda Vanzi's prior
 staternents and findings with respect to Montoya, inchiding those made at the December 3, 2007
hearing, coupled with the very detailed and serious allegations of misconduct made against Mr.

Montoya as set out in the disciplinary board complaint, cast reasonable doubt on her ability to




preside impartially over the instant case. Indeed, this Court already has a predisposition toward
ruling against Moﬁtoya in this case. Certainly, it cannot be‘said that this Coun remains neutral in
this case.” Permitting this Court to rule on the Petition against Montoya for attorney malpractice
would be a violation of Montoya’s due process rights, and would deprive him of a fair and
impartial fribunal,

b. Judge Vanzi Should Recuse Based on her Interest in this Case.

New Mexico’s Constitution, Arﬁc]e‘ VI, §18, provides that no judge shall “sit in any
cause. . in which she has an intere_st.” An interest necessary to disqualify a judge “must be a
present pecumary interest in the .result, or actual bias or prejudice, not some indirect, remote,
speculative, theoretical or possible interest.” Srare ex rel. Bardacke v. Welsh, 102 N.M. 592,
QOB, 698 P.2d 462, 463 (Ct. App. 1985) (quoting Srate ex rel Anaya v. Scarborough, 75 N.M.
7"02, 705, 410 P.2d 732, 734 (1966)). The purpose to this provision in the New Mexico
Constitution is to “secure to litigants a fair and impartial trial by an impartial and unbiased
tribunal.” Bardacke, 102 N.M.-.atr 603, 698 P.2d at 463 (quoting Tharp v Massengill, 38 N.M.
58, 70, 28 P.2d 502, 509 (1933)). The evidence requiring recusal typically must arise from a
personal, extrajudicial source, and not a judicial source. Purpura, 115 N.M. at 84, 847 P2d at
318. See also United Nuclear Corp. v. General Atomic Co., 96 N.M. 155, 250, 629 P.2d 231, 326
(1980 |

L :

In State v. Stour, 100 NM. 472;-672 P.2d 645 (1983), the Court held that there is an
appearance of impropriety when a judge “become[s] so embroiled in the controversy that he
cannot fairly and objectively hear the case, or when he or one of his staff wil] necessarily be a
- witness in the proceeding.” Jd. at 475,672 P.2d at 648. In that case, the Court went on further to

state that “where it is unlikely that he can maintain the calm detachment necessary for far




adjudication, then he should be prohibited from rendering the contempt judgment.” Jd ar 474-
75,672 P 2d at 647-48.

This Court has obtained various information regarding Montoya from an ‘extra-judicial
source—Ms. Oakey’s investigation regarding various settlements and distﬁbution of those
proceeds that were procured before the fiting of this lawsuit, Ms. Oakey, in her capacity as
Guardian ad Litem for Thomas Utley, commenced an external mvestigation regarding the
settlements procured with Prudential, Liberty, and Blimp'er to Bumper. Indeed, the settiements
that occurred with Prudential and Liberty éccurred before the filing of this lawsuit and before the
settlements with Bridgestone and Bumper to Bumper.

While this case does not involve a contempt hearing, it does mvolve allegations of iegal
malpractice against Montoya. The allegations and concerns were rajsed by this Court and by an
a.rm of the Court in the form of a 1) disciplinary board complaint, 2) a second complaint filed by
Ms. Oakey pe'nding‘ mn the Second Judicial District, and 3) inl the subject Petition. Presently, this
Court has become embroiled in the allegations against Montoya. Arguably, this Court could call

‘Ms. Oakey as a .Witness during the hearing oﬁvthe Petition since she is purported to have
discovered the underlying issues 1t-hat form th.e basis for the aﬂegations made in the Petition, the
Complzint for Attorney Malpractice pendmg in the Second Judicial D;smct and the allegations
contained in the dlsmphnary board complaint.

Conclusion

For the reasons set forth above, tlﬁs Court cannot act impartially, or without the
appearance of impropriety, and should not rule on Petition or any of the other pending motions.
Accordingly, Montoya respectiully requests that this Court recuse from hearing the Petitions in

this case or any other pending matters and that the hearing set for May 1, 2008, be vacated.

10




Respectfully submitted,

RODEY, DICKASON, SLOAN, AKIN & ROBB, P.A.

ol DA

Charles/f Vigy
Seth L. Sparkeés
Attorneys for Denfits Montoya

P.O.Box 1888
Albuquerque, NM 87103
Telephone: (505) 765-5%00
FAX: (505) 768-7395

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

[ hereby certify that I have caused fo be mailed a true and correct copy of the foregoing
pleading to the following counsel of record on April 24, 2008:

Ronald R. Adamson
217 N. Schwartz Avenue
Farmington, NM 87504-5 546

William F. Riordan

2740 Rio Grande Avenue, N.W.

Albuquerque, NM 87103

- Arthur O. Beach
Keleher & McLeod, P.A.
P.O. Box AA
Albuquerque, NM 87104-3228

Joseph Wosick
4908 Alameda Blvd.,, N.E.
Albuquerque, NM 87113

RODEY, DICKASON?M\!, AKIN & ROBB, P.A.
A |

Charlés J. v%/]}/
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- FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

COUNTY OF SAN MIGUEL

- U STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CV-2004-445
ARTHUR E. VARGAS, et al.,
plaintiff,
VS. ' _
BRIDGESTONE FIRESTONE,lINC., et al.,

Defendants.

IRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

on the 3d day of Decembef; 2007, at épproximately 2:00
p.m., this matter came on for hearing before the HONORABLE
LiNBA M..VANZI, Di&%sion TV, Judge of the Second Judicial
District, State of New Mexico.

The Plaintiff, -ARTHUR E. VARGAS, ef al., abpeared by
Counsel of Record, DENNIS MONTOYA and RON ADAMSON, Attorneys
at Léw, 1822 tomas BIvdl, NW, Albuguerque, NM 87104,

“The Defendant; BRIDGESTONE FIRESTONE, INC., et al.,
appeared by Counsel of Record, ARTHUR BEACH, Attorney at
Law, P.O. Box AA, A1bﬁquerque, NM 87103.

A]Se present, Guardian Aa Litem, KATHLEEN OAKEY,
Attorney at Law, P.O. BoX 6695, Albuquerque, NM 87197.

At which time the following proceedings were had:

EXHIBIT

official Court Reporter
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investigation into your role in this lawsuit as well, okay?
i MR. CUMMINGS: Yes, ma'am. )
THE COURT: All right. Thank you. All right.

Codnse1 I have very serijous concerns about ‘what has taken

_p]ace in this lawsuit’ and with the proposed sett?ements

There has been no attent}on'pa1d to the estate of Cody

Utley, and certainly. the only heir of the estate, who is

Thomas Utley, this minor amount of'$100,000 out of a total’

776 plus settlement and 1ife insurance gain does not

represent the best interest of this child in any way, shape
or form. Let me start out by saying I do find that the
Bridgestone Firestone settlement in the aﬁount of $550,000 1
do find to be fair and reascnable, so I don't have a problem
with the amount itself, I do-find there to be a serious
problem with the allocation, howeVer, and the distribution.
At this time, this.is what I'm going to do. I think I
need to get more information regarding Mr. Montoya and
Mr. Adamsoﬁ's attorney’s fees and costs, and I need to see
more documentation before I make any'determ1natwon on how
much of that should be a11ocated Thomas utley is due a Tot
more money than what's even in this Bridgesfoné Firestone
settlement, and, in fact, Ms., iKosec, I may tell you that you
may indeed owe your son some money,.okay.

wWith that, I am going to order that the entire amount

of the $550,000 at this time less Mr. Montoya's fees and _

36

MELANTIE D. LUCERQ, CCR-RPR-CRR
official Court Reporter
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costs, since I am going to be Iooking 1hto.those further
will be d1str1buted to Thomas Utley, okay so for right
now, 246, 089 46 will be d15tr1buted to Thomas Utley.
Ms. bakey, 1 am going to appoirit you as a conservator of‘
Thomas Utley's money, okay, and‘un1¢s§ you say no to me
right now in which case 111 have to find_anbtﬁer ‘
conservator, and as the cohservator, I e&pect that you will
exercise your full rights to dé any further investigationlon
this issue to see what other moneys may be due to Thomas,
all right.

| MS. OAKEY: Yes, Your Honer. .

THE COURT The rema1n1ng fees and costs fees 1in
the amount of 285, OOO -- hang on. Fees 1in the amount of
$235,125 plus the $68,785.54 should be put into the court
registry, which is an interest bearing account, and it will
be held there until I make a decision and determipation as
to the proper allocation of the fees and costs, all right.
in the meant1me thws is a T1tt1e child's 1nterests that
have not been watched by anybody. I'm not blaming defense
counsel. Dbefense counsel went and found a structufed
settlement, which I have never seen in the years that I've

been Tooking over these minor settlements. But I have never

‘seen Plaintiff's counsel or a personal representative

completely dismiss a child's interests. I mean, this boy 1is

elght years old, and not one person watched out for him or

37

MELANIE D. LUCFRO, CCR-RPR-CRR
Official Court Reporter
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, FILED IN MY OFFICE THIS
SECONDJUDICIAL DISTRICT | - ,
COUNTY OF BERNALILLO A E : JAN 27 2008 _
STATE OF NEW MEXICO _ - %M w937 Liars 5
‘ CLERK DISTRICT COURT 3
Kathleen M.V, Oakey, as Guardian
ad Litem and Conservator of the Estate
of Themas Utley, a Minor

V.

Dennis W, Montoya, Attormey at Jaw.
- Pefendant,

 Compizing for Aviorney Malpractice, |
Breach of Fiduciary Tty angd Bm&e}q of Contract.
Comes now Plaintiy Kathleen MV, Oakey, Guardian ad Litem and Conservator of the Estate
of Thomas Utley by and through attemey Wifliam Riordan and for the cause of action on behalf of

Thomas Utley Plaintiff states: ' .

!+ Plaintiflis a resident of Bemalillo County, New Mexico, , .
2, Dennis MOD!O};&,. (hereafier “Montoya” or “Defendant™) js a resident of the State of New
Mexico. ' . ) Ce L - .
3 On o about March 14, 2003, Tresa Kosec, the mother of Thomas Ulley entered into a
contractpal relifionshi P in which Montoya undertook the legal representation as attorney for Kosec

in “a personal in'juiy case arising from the fact that the deceased, Cody Utley, was the victim of
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paid them fo Kosec, _ |
6. Montoya filed a workers compensation claim on behalf of the Estate of Cody Utley angd
negotiated a settlement for death benefits, obtaining an order designating Tresa Kosec as the “Proper

-Recipicm of Benefits” of the settlement for the death of Cody Utley ;:".n-the Worker Corapensation
Proceeding.

7. .Montoya obtained the appointment of Asdhur Vargas, as Personal Representative of the
Estate of Cody Utley to bring a wrongful death action in the Fourth Judicial District against Bumper
t0 Bumper Auto SBalvage, and against Bridgestona@ireston{: Tie and Rubber Company
8. Montoya negoﬁatcd-sctﬂemcﬁm of the cléjm against Bumper to Bumper Auto Salvage and
against Byid gestonéﬂ?ircsiqﬂa Tire and Ruﬁber Company in the lawsuit’

-Claim for Breach of Fiduciary Daty
9, Plaintiff realleges the allepations contained in Paragraphs one through éight as if set out in—
), | _ ‘_
0.  Asan iattomcy, Montoya owed a fiduciary o Thomas Utley, in his representation of ali

matters involving Thomas Utley’s interests.
H.  Pursuant to New Mexico Law, Montoya owed a fiduciary duty fo assure that all moneys
properly bcioﬁging to Thomas Utley were safeguarded for the exlusive benefit of Thomas Utley.
12, Mﬁt to New Mextco Law, Montoy& owed a fiduciary duty to Thomas Utley to represent
onty his interests if they were in conflict with the inferest of any other person. :
13, Montoya breached the fiduciary duty owed to Thomas Utley by taldng the following actions
as an aftorney practicing law in the State of New Mexico: '
A.‘ Misrepresenting that Tresa Koseé wag the wife of Cody Utley m the Application
for Appointment of Personal Representative in the Eleventh Judicial District, and
_ in the Order obtained from the Court in that mafter,
B. Mjsrépresenting that Tresa Kosec’s dauéhter Brionna was Cody Utley’s daughter
- in the Application for Appointment of Personal Representative in the Eleventh
Tudicial District. _
C. Obtaining the insurance proceeds from Prudential Financial op behalf of the Estate
of Cody Utley and ﬁaying them to Tresa Kosee without informing Tresa Kosec that

they were 10 be used for the sole heir of the estate, Thomas Utley.




14.

15.

K.

Ob‘tzumgg the proceeds of the settlement from the WCA and not informing Tresa
Kosec that the proceeds were solely for the b@neﬁt of Thomas Utiey

Negotiating settlements on behalf of the Estate of 'I'homas Utley while bc fepresented
the competing inferest of Tresa Rosez, and by making clims for Brionna,
who was not an heir of Cody Utley.

Settlmg the claim against Bumper to Bump&r for an madequaie amount, and by
failing to get Court approval of the settlement,

Settlmg the claim of Tresa Kosec who had ‘compeiing’ inferests, and cldiming
Tresa Kosec’s daughtcr was entitled to a portion of the procéeds of the Bumpcr to
Bumper sctﬂcm ent, ’

By providing funds to Tresa Kosec for the setflement of Thomas Utley’s claims
without telling her that portion of the setﬂemem was fo be used for the sole beneﬁt
of Thomas Utley. : ,

Representmg the competing interests of Thomas Utley and Tresa Kosec in the
setﬂement of the Bridgestone/Firestone claim and not negotiating them separately,
and by requesting an excessive share of the seitlemient for Tresa Kosee, _
Making misrepresentations to the Guardian ad Titem appointed by the court in -
the proceeding for court approval of the sctﬂemem against Bndgcstonf:fF westone Tire -
and Rubber, for the purpose of obtaining an excessive portion of the settlement for

“Tresa Uﬂcy, af the expense of Thomias Utley.

Obtaining an madcquate settlernent m the workers comnpensation claim for te
death of Cody Utley.

Monfoya’s Breach of i ‘iduciary Duty owed to Thonms Utley was the prommarc cause of
compensatory damages to Thomas Utley in &n amount to be proven at trlal '

Montoya acted with complete disregard of the intevests of Thomas Utley and acted

intentionally in the mistepresentations that he made during the time that he Was representing the
interests of Thomas Utley, thereby justifying the award of punitive damages against Momoya inan
amount o bedeteﬁnmedby&e trier of fact in this case.

16.

Breach of Contraes

Plambff realleges the aﬂegatxons contained in paragraphs one through cight as if set out in
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1 7. Pmsmnt o thc Representation Agreemeni(s) signed betwcan Montoya and Teesa Kosec and

the agreement between Montoya and Arthur Vargas, Montoya agreed to represent the interests of
Thomas Utley. _ . ' .

18.  Pursuanttothe Répmsbntéﬁon Agreement(s), Montoya agreed that his actions would be held
to the stand of care expected of attorneys practicing law in the State of New Mexico.

19. " The Representation Agreement(s) confained an implied covenant of good fmth and fair

dealing,

. 20, Montoya breached the'RBprescmmion Agreement(s) by at least the following actions:

Al Not properly representing the interests of the Estate of Cody Utley

B. Not properly representing the interests of Thomas Utley, Ehe sole statutory heir of
Cody Utley. ’

C. . Notacting in Good Faith during his representation of the interest (s) or Thomas Utley.

D. Not negotiating the seftlements in Tﬁe Bumper t Bumper claim and 1th<;~
Bridgestone/Firestons claims separately for Tresa Kosec’s claim, and the claim for
Thomas Utley, .

B Failingto cooperate with the Guardian ad Litem ypipointed to fuvestigate whether of
not the settlement was adequare and w the best interest of Thomas Utley in the
Bndgcstone/FLrestonc case, thercby increasing the cost of the Guardian ad
Litem fce all o the detriment of Thomas Uﬂey

E. Not safeguardmg the funds received for the heneﬁt of Thomas Uliey and the Estate
of Cody Utley 1o assure that they were available for the exclusive berefit of Thomas
Utley. ' '
- G Charging an excessive fee,
21 Asa rcsult-(ff the bmch of contract by Montoya, Thomas Utley was damaged in an amounnt
{0 be proven at tral, .
: Negﬁggenc&
22, Pl&m‘aﬂ" rcallcges the a.llegaﬁons contained in paragraphs one Ehrough nite and fifieen
through twenty-one a5 if set out in full.

23, Pursuant to the Representation Agreement(s), Monioya agreed that his actions would be
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hleld to the standard of care cxpcotcd of stiorneys practicing law in the State of New Mexico. Failure-

to adheré to this standard of care constitutes negligence.

24,

25.
26.

27.

28

Montoya was negligent in stating that Tresa Utley was the wife of Cody Utley and the her
daughter Brionna was Cody Utley’s daughter in the Application for the Appointm;:nt of
Personal Representative, and other legal pleadings filed that affeet the interesi(s) on Thomas
Utley.. o -

Monfoya was negljgcﬁt in the manver in which he handled, and in the amount that he
negotiated as a setflement for in the Worker Compensation death benefit claim on behalf of
Thomas Utley. ‘ . .
Montoya was negligent in failing to advised Tresa that the proceeds of the claim for life
insurance benefits with Prudential Securities and the WCA claim were for the sole benefit
of Thomas Utley and should be safeguarded and set aside for Thomas Utley’s benefit.
Montoya was neghgeut in the mannor in which he handled the claim against Bumper to

Bumper by:
A. Representing the interests of Thomas Utley while representing competing intérests
. of Tresa Kosec, . _
B Making & claim on behalf of Brionna Kosec wﬁifc he re;;rescmiug the interest(s) of ‘
A Thomas Utley.

. C. A Setling the claims of Thomas Utley for an inadequate amount.
D .Failing to-inform Tresa Utley of the mediation when Thomas Utley’s individual

. claims weze seitled. . :
E.  Failure 1o seek coust approval of the Bumper fo Bumper settlement as it aﬁ‘eotcd’; :
Thomas Utley. : - :

P, - Failingto assure that if money s obtamf;d far Thomas Uﬂcy, that lt was properly;

: - safegnarded for his axcluswe bem:ﬁt. _
G. . Not propﬁiy aacommng for the costs expended. ,
H - Chs.rgmg an excesswe ff:e : )

"Montoya was negligent in failing to pmpmiypmtect the mterests of ﬂlv Estate of Cody Uﬂey
. m his icgal representation and failed to p:operly pmtect thc mterests of "I‘homas Utlcy in the N
sstﬂcﬁncnts that he nﬂgatgaied, and the insurance bémefits th&tbs obtamed. T s '*',:-7 _




29, Momoya was negligent in the advice that he gave Tresa Kosec when she was acting in the
capacity of Personal Representative of the Estate of Cody‘ Utley 25 to who the heirs of the Estate
were, and what she was to do with the money that was obtained for the benefit of Thomas Utley. A
30.  Montoya was negligent in the statements he provided and the documents that hcvfumishcd |
‘to the Guardian ad Litem appointed to investigate the adequateness of the settlement of the
Bridgestone/Firestone case, thereby increasing the cost'of the Guardian ad Litem fee all to the
deiririent of Thomas Utley ' .
31, Montoya was negligent in (he fnanner in which he disitibuted the Prudenﬁal Financial Life
' Insurance Benehits. ‘ .
32, Montoya was neghgent in the manner in which he retained and charge:d for the services of
Brandon Cummins, a “litigation para legal”, and Robert Sandoval a “private investigator™.
33, Asaresult of the proximate conduct 6f Montoya, Plaintiff bad to retain the services of an
attorney 'to recover funds fér Thomas Utley that were lost or not recovered due to Montoya’s
negligence,
34.,  Asaresult fo the proximate cohduct of Montoya, Thormas Utley was damaged in ap amount
to be proved at trial.

Wheréfore, Plaintiff Kathleeri M.V. Oakeyj or["behalfof'f‘homas Utley requesfs the following

relief:

a. An award of compensatory damages to Thomas Uitey, mdmduaﬂy and as the sole
heir of the estate of Cody Utley, in the amount proved at trial;

b. An avward of punitive damages against Denms Montoya for his conduct in during the

representation of the individual claims of Thomas Utley, and the estate of Cody Utley,

whose sole heir was Thomas Utley; _

c. An award of pre-judgrhent end post judgment interest;

d. An award of attomey fees and costs incurred in pursuing this action;

e.  Suchother and further relicf proved by the evidence that the Couri may deem p[i)pt]‘

Rcspectﬁﬂly,

(i, Q

William Riordan
Attorney for Plaintff
2740 Rio Grande NW
Albuguerque, NIM 87104




SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT
COUNTY OF BERNALILLO
STAIE OF NEW MEXICO

Kathleen M.V. Ozkey, as Guardian
ad Litem and Conservator of the Estate
of Thomas Uﬂcy, a Minor.
Plamtiff,

W

Dennis W, Montoya, Atiomey at Llaw.

Defendant,
SURSMONS
To: Dennis W Montoya
1822 Lomas NW
Albugquerque, NM

You are requited to serve upon William Riord#n, an answer ¢f modion im response {o the
complaint which is attached to this summons within 3¢ days afier service of this sumitions Ugton
- you, exclusive of the day of service, ands file a copy of your apswer or motton with the court as
provided in Rule {-005 NMRA.

" Hyoufail to file a timely answer or motion, defuilt judgment may be entered agamst you for
the relief demanded in the complaint. .

Atforney(s) for plaintifis:
Williaw F. Ricrden
2740 Rio Grande NW
Albuguerdue, NM 87104
(505) 255-9300

WITNESS the Honomable  VLLIAM FLANG. , Diistrict Judge of the Second
Judicial Disteict Cctm of the State of New Mexico, and the seal Df the Distnct Couri of Bernalitlo
COUDty, this . 2 2 Z! ;f‘ 007, - f( ¢ QH; TA A, D.“}%_‘%ni\é'

Clerk of the District Court

By Marina HernandeZ

Dated:

Deputy




RETURN
STATE OF NEW MEXICO )
)88,
COUNTY OF SANTA FE )]

I bemg duly sworn, on oath, say that I am over the age of cighteen (18) years and not a party fo this
tawsvit, and that I served the summons m Beroaliflo Covntyonthe  day of
2007, by delivering a copy of this summons; with copy of complaint attached, in the following tnanner:
(Chzck one box and i iv spproprizfe blaeks)

[ 11to the defendant Dennis W, Montoya (med when defendant recelves a copy of summions and comiplaint
or refises fo accepi the swmmons ond complaini).

[ ] 1to the defendant Ienais W. Momtoya by [wail] [courier sewmc] as {provided by Rule 1-004 NMRA
(used when service is by mail or commercial coyrier service).

Afler altempting to serve the stmmons and complaint on the defendant by personal service or by mail or
commereial conrier service, by delivering & copy of the summons, with a copy of complaing attached, in fhe
following manner:

[ 1to ' , @person 1S years of age and m<ding st the usoal place of abode of
defendant, Dennis W. Montoya (used when the defendat is not presently at place of abode) and by mailing
by frst class mail to the defendant at

(insert-defendamt s lust knovmn mmfmgaddress) a copy of the summons &nd cumplamt.

f Jto... . . , the person appamntiy m charge af the actual place of business or
empioymcm of ﬁ:ua defendant Denmis W Montoya and by mailing by first class mail to the defendont at

{insert the defendont’s business address) and by mailing the sunmmons
and complaintby fiest clags mail to the defendant Dennis W, Montoya ot~
(insert the defendmt’s last knovn meiling address).

[Yto o . .. ... .. s¢age;ts;cthorized fo receive service of process for the defendant Dennis
W. Montoya.
[ Jio_ — e » pavent] [guandian] [custodian] {conservator] [guardian ad Titem]
of defendant Denms W Mﬂsntoya (used when defendarit is a miinor or an incompetent persorn).
Fees: s s At o e e e emm_ e e e o o e

Signafure of Person Malcing Service

Title (if amy})
Subscribed and Sworn to before me this,  day of . 2007, by
Tudege, Notary ar pther officer Official Tite

authorized to adxmmster oaths
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Distaier Jupce - . -ALBUQUERQUE, NEw MExico 87103
]andarygl’ 2008 .- .. ; _ ’ 505-841.7456

Fax: 505.841.5458
Euanr albdimv@nmeourts.com

Disciplinary Board
P.0. Box 1809 -
Albuquergue, NM 87103-1809

.Re: Dennis W. Montoya, Fsq.; Roriald Adamson; Fsq. .
Dear Sir or Madam: ' -

‘ Puréuanf_to Rule'16-803A, L am notifying you of what I believe t6 be violations of the rules
- of professional conduct by Dennis W. Montoya, Bsq. and Ronald Adamson, Bsq. Specifically, the -

* violations may fall under Rules.16-101, 16-102, 16-105, 16-107, 16-108, 16-114, 16-303, 16-401

and 16-804. : o J

T BACKGROUND

The facts of the underlying case which are the basis for the issues raised in this letter are as |
follows. Cody Utley and Ticsa Kosec met in Utah-in the fall of 1996 and began living together in
" November 1996, They were never married, Ms. Kosec had a'daughter, Brionna Kosee, from a
previous relationship. . On about March 1998, Mr. Utley nioved from- Utah to Farmington, New
Mexico for work; Ms. Kosec and Brionna joined him there a few months later. Mr, Utley and Ms.
- Kosee had a so, Thomas, bom in Farmington on August 29, 1999,

In the lale evening of November 5, 2002, Mr. Utley traveled from his home in Farmington
* -to a work site in Tucumcari and then to a mofel where he was staying. While en route to the moftel, -
the truck Mr. Utley -was driving had a blowout; Mr. Utley lost control of the truck and it rolled
several times ejécting both he and passenger Craig Hopkins. Mr. Utley was killed and Mr. Hopkins
suffered serious injuries. - o : :

. On October 28, 20.(_)%, Aifhur Vér'gas, as the Porsonal Représentative b_f the Wrongfial Death
- Estate of Cody Utley, filed an “Amended Complaint”, through His attorneys Denris Montoya and °
Ronald Adamson, against Brid gestorie/Firestone, Inc. and Bumper. t6 Bumper Aitto Salvage

C

PENGAD 800-631-698
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( ‘Bumper to Bumper) infhe Fourth J udmlalDistnct Cowt.! Ms. Kosec, Brionna Kosec and Thomas
Utley were likewise named as Plaintiffs.> The Amended Complaint allegéd the followin g causes of
action against both Defendants: strict liability, negligence, misrepresentation, breach of the implied
warranty of merchantability, breach of the implied warranty of fitness fora pamculzu purpose, unfair
trade practices and loss of consorttum

_ As set forth bgaiow; during the entire course of this litigation, as well as in various other legal |
roatfers mvolving Mr. Utley’s death, Mssrs. Montoya and Adamson did virtually nothing to protect
the interest of the minor child Thomas Utley, the only legal beneficiary to Mr, Utley’s estate. I -
became aware of problems regarding the distribution of monies recovered only when T was asked
to approve the settlement with the last remaining Defendant Bridgestone/Firestone.> Because I
believe it is important to a full understanding of what has taken place, I am providing a chronology
of events that have taken place since Mr. Utley’s death. While I have not presided over many of
these matters, the-actions taken by Mr. Montoya and Mr. Adamson arc well documerftﬁd and are of.
considerable concern. -

IL PRUDENTIALF INAN CIAL - LIFE INSURANCE PROCEEDS -

Before a cival compiamt was ever filed, Mr. Monfoya was mvolved in helping Ms. Kosec
gain access to the proceeds of Mr. Utley’s life insurance policy. See Transcriptatp. 18, fines 10- 15
Exhibit 1. A month after Mr. Utley’s death, Ms. Kosec contacted Mr. Utley’s employer, Key
Energy, inquiring as to the existence of any life insnrance proceeds. Prudential informed Ms. Kosec
that they had issued Mr. Utley a “Basic Life and Accidental Death” insurance policy and that the
policy did hot name a beneficiary. Letter from Pradential to Ms. Kosec dated December 12, 2002,
Rxhibit26. Ms. Kosec then contacted Prudential informming them that she was Mr. Utiey’s w;fe and

b The case, Vargas et al v. Bridgestone/Firestone, Inc. et al., No. CV 2004- O0445 Wwas
reassigned to me by stipulation of the pames after all the judges in the Fourth Judicial Dlstuct
had been excused. .

? Craig Hopkins was also a named Plaintiff in the same suit, However, he was
represented by separate counsel and the representation of Mr. Hopkins is not at issue here.

3 On October 17, 2007, I appointed Kathleen Oakey as the Guardian ad Litem (“GaL”) to
review the seftlement with Bridgestone/Firestone and to make recommendations to the Court
regarding the reasonableness of the settlement and the proposed distribution. Much of the
information here was discovered by Ms. Oakey during the course of her investigation. )
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that theyihad two children.* ‘On December4, 2002, Ms. Kosec completed a Prudéntial Financial _ -
“Beneficiary Statement” contending that she was the “wife” of Mr. Utley.* Beneficiary Statement
‘datedd 12/04/02, Bxhibit 5. - See also Preferential Beneficiary Affidavit, Exhib_it 27.

© OnTFeébruary 7, 2003, Prudéntial sentMs, Kosec a letter informing her that Pradential had
accepted the-claim-but that because Mr, Utley had not elected a beneficiary, the insurance policy
benefits were payable to the “preferred beneficiary[ies]. . .[as follows]: the spouse, children, patents,
siblings, or the estate of the iﬁsured.” Letter from Prudential to Tresa Kosec-Utley dated February
17,2003, Exhibit 6. The “prefc:rred beneficiary” status clearly did not include Tresa Kosec,

Not satisfied with Prudential’s refusal torelease the funds fo M. Kosec, onMarch 18,2003,
Mz, Montoya and Mr. Adamson filed an “Application for Informal Appointment of Personal
Representative” (Application), in [nthe Matter of the Bstate of Cody Utley, Deceased, No. PB 2003-
18-6 (11" Jud. Dist. Ct.).5 The Application, prepared by My, Montoya, mistepresented the following
critical facts to the Court and requested that Tresa Kosec be appointed as the Personal Representative

" of the Fstate of Cody Utley: .

.4 Virtually all of the legal pleadings and cdn'espondence allege that Mr. Utley had two
children, Brionna and Thomas; at different times, Brionna was referred to as “Brionna Utley”
rather than “Brionna Kosec,” This issue is further discussed below.

’ Ms. Qakey asked M. Montoya to provide het, with a copy of the “actual life insurance

designation page signed by Cody Utley or any documentation prepared/signed by Tresa Kosec or
[him] (i.e. statement, affidavit, application, efc.) which Prudential relied on in determining that
Tresa Kosec was the proper beneficiary of the life insurance proceeds.” Mr. Monfoya informed
the GaL that he had “been unable to get any documents from Prudential. They closed their file
years ago. I'will provide you an affidavit attesting that Ms. Kosec was the named beneficiary,
but that is the best I can do,” See Letter from M., Montoya to-Ms. Oakey dated October 19,
2007, Bxhibit 2, Mr. Montoya did not know that the GalL had already contacted Prudential upon
my request and that they stated there was no problem in retrieving the file and would provide her =
a copy with a Cowurt order, . -

. Priortothat,ina letter dated October 15, 2007, Mr. Montoya told the GaL that the lifs )
insurance proceeds were paid directly to Ms. Kosec as the “listed beneficiary.” Letter from Mr,
Montoya to Ms. Oakey dated October 15, 2007, Exhibit 3. This was untrue. In.mid November
2007, Mr. Montoya sent the GaL an “Affidavit of Tresa Kosec” in which Ms. Kosec swore that
she “was listed as the beneficiary of Cody Utley’s life insurance policy.” Affidavit of Tresa
Kosec dated November 16, 2007, Exhibit 4. This was also ugtme. .

8 M. Ut[ey died intestate.




Disciplinary Board
- January 31, 2008
Page 4

- of decedent’s children Brionna Kosec-and Thomas Utley.

3

- Petitioner [TresaXosee] is [the] wife of the deceden t, Cody Utley, and the mother

[T]he names and qd_dress‘es.of the heirs of the decedent . ., are as follows:
A. TRESA KOSEC

B. BRIONNA KOSEC

C. THOMAS UTLEY

Application, Fxhibit 7. (Efiphasis added),

Based on the swom statements that Ms. Kosec was the wife of Cody Utley and the parent and
.guardian of Cody Utley’s minor children, Brionna Kosec and Thomas Utley, the Court entered an
- “Order for informal Administration, Appointment of Personal Representative, Order ofintestacyand -.

Determination of Heirship” appointing Ms. Kosec the Personal Representative of the Estate of Cody
Utley. Exhibit 8. The Order was prepared and submitted by Mr. Montoya and Mr, Adamson,

_ At no time was Tresa Kosec married to Cody Utley and her declaration that she was Cody

Utley's wife and therefore an heir was patently false. See Worker’s Compensation Administration
First Report of Accident (indicating that Mr. Utley was wnrnanied), Exhibit 9. See also Transcript,
Page 18 Lines 16-20 (stating “I knew there was no maniage certificate, yes.”), Exhibit 1. Further,
Brionna Kosec was not Cody Utley’s child and the sworn statement that she is an heir to his estate
isalsofalse.” See Worker's Compensation Administration Notice of B enefit Payment (showing that

on the date of his death Mr. Dtley was nnmarried and had only one.child), Bxhibit 10.

Mr. Montoya subsequently forwarded . a copy of the Order Appointing Personal
Representative to Prudential and on April 10, 2003, Prudential sent M. Montoya a letter stating that

New Mexico does not recognize common law marriage and that:

Duting our conversation you stated that Tresa and Mr. Utley lived in Utah prior to’
his death, and that states recognizes common law marriage. We are asking for tax
forms, household bills, medical bills or any other information you can provide as
verification of this marriage. =~ : '

_ 7 Afthe hearing before this _Coui't; T'asked Mr. Montoya-how Brionna Kosec came tobe
named as an heir in the probate. Remarkably, he stated that “at that time, we were under the
belief that there was a de facto adoption of Brionna.” Transcript at pages 22-23, lines 24.- 1,

" Exhibit 1. Mr. Montoya was unable to provide me with any facts or case law as fo under what
ciroumstances a “de facto adoption” is recognized in New Mexico.
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~If this 'cannot be established the proceeds would be payable to the two minor

.. children. We would need to be provided with, guardianship of the estate of the
. ~children. ' : E SR o

- Letter from Prudential to Méntbya dated April 10, 2003, Exhibit 1. On May 5, 2003, Mr. Montoya
sent Prudential a Ietter-threatening to file suit unless Prudential paid the life insurance proceeds.
Letter from Montoya to Prudential dated May 5, 2003, Exhibit 12. :

In a letter dated June 10, 2003, Brandon Cummings, a “litigation paralegal” with Mr.
Montoya’s office sent Prudential an “A ffidavit of Tresa Kosec™allegedly signed on Apil 10, 2003,
which provides: “I was the common law wife of Cody Utley. 1lived with Cody Utley in the State
of Utah from November 1996 through July 1998.” Letter from Brandon Cummings to Prudential
dated June 10, 2003, Affidavit attached, Bxhibit 13, Referring to the affidavit, Mr. Cummings

. falsely stated that “Pursuant I’QUt_ahlaw,,lhisresidcncycstablishé&th‘ecommonklawAmamage_ost.. o

Kosec-Utley and Mr. Utley.”™ 1d, On June 20, 2003, Prudential issued a check in the amount of
$73,790.80 to “The Estate of Cody Utley, care of his atforney, Dennis W. Montoya.”-

. Apparently, Mr, Monfoya did not keep any portion of the life insurance proceeds as an -
attorney fee. However, Mr. Montoya retained $25,000.00 for “costs.” Ms. Kosec received the
money directly and none of the life insurance funds were disbursed through the Estate of Cody
Utley? Further, Ms. Kosec contends that Mr. Montoya never instructed her as to how the monies
should be disbursed through the probate matter or whether any portion of the monies belonged to
Thomas. In fact, although all the money-belonged to Thomas, none Wwas set aside for his benefit .
inclpding through purchase of an anmuity, college fund, CD, savings account, ete, Ms. Kosee has
spent all the money. : -

4

¥ Tn fact, 2 common law marriage in Utah can only be recognized by a judicial

determination. . See Utah. Code Ann. Section 30-1-4.5 (1998)(Validity of marriage not -

_solemnized), Exhibit 2. Mr. Montoya never sought or obtained a judicial determination
regarding the Utley/Kosec common law marriage. His allegation that he abandoned that course
of action after reviewing Lozoya v. Sanchez, 133 N.M. 579, 66 P.3d 948 (2003), is simply not
credible. See Letter from Montdya to Oakey dated September 28, 2007, Exhibit 14. Lozoya
creates no recognition of a comumon law marriage in New Mexico for purposes of anything
except a possible loss of consortium ¢laim and would have no bearing in this case with regard to
the distribution of estate assets. o

" ¥ In fact, there has been no activify whatsoever in In The Matter of the Estate of Cody
Utley, Deceased, since the Order Appointing PR was entered on April 3, 2003, Transcript at p.
22, lines 1-10, Exhibit 1.
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. “KEY ENERGY/MUTUAL INS. GROUP (WORKERS COMPENSATION
BENEFITS) : : o

On November 3, 2003, Mr. Montoya filed a “Workers Compensation Complaint” on behalf
of*“The Wrongful Death Estate of Cody Utley (deceased)” against Key Energy and Mutual Insurance
Group (the workers compensation insurer), The parties attendéd amediation on J anuary 5, 2004 and
an agreement was reached thereaffer. OnJ anuayry 29, 2004, Tresa Kosec, who was represented by
Mr. Montoya, signed a “Setilement Agreement and Release” (Agreement) in her capacity “as
Personal Representative of the Estate of Cody Utley.” The Agreement provided in part:

To [the best of] my knowledge, Cody Utley has only two children, being
Tomas James Utley and Brionna L. Utley.'® T am not aware of any other children
fathered by Cody Utley."
Agreement (emphasis added), Bxhibit 15, Pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, Ms. Kosec
agreed, as the “spouse and/or personal representative for the estate of Cody Utley” to accept
' $55,000.00 ($92.54 for 500 weeks) in fill setttement of the workers compensation claim. Id,

After a hearing on February 5, 2004, Tudge Joan O’Connell entered an Order Designaling
Proper Recipient of Benefits” finding that Tresa Kosec “is the proper recipient of settlement
proceeds on behalf of herselfand the two minor children Thomas James Utley and Brionna Utley.”
Order Designating Proper Recipient of Benefits, Exhibit 16. ' p

The same day, Mr. Montoya filed a “Petition for Lump Sum Payment” (Petition) requesting

the, Courtapprove a lurnp sum payment of $55,000 rather than weekly benefits. OnMarch 11, 2004,

WCA Judge Terry Kramer entered an “Order Approving Settlement and Lump Sum Payment and

Awarding Attorney Fees™, finding that the parties had agreed to settle the disputed claim for $55,000

* “payable fo Tresa Kosec, on behalf of herself and the Worker’s fwo minor children.” (Emphasis
© added). .

" Thereaftet, Liberty Mutual Ins. G1'0i1p&(ey Bnergy issued .a check in the amount of
$55,000.00 which Mr. Montoya distributed as follows:

> 1% At some point during the WCA proceeding, Brionna began being referred to as
“Brionna Utley” rather than “Brionna Kosec.” -

" Clearly, the implication was that Mr. Utley was the biological father of Brionna which”
* hewasnot. See Exhibit 10 (one child), See also Transcript at p. 22 - 23, Lines 19 - 2 (re: de
facto adoption), Exhibif 1. o :
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. PAYOR" ' AMOUNT
MontoyaTaw, e, © . g 8,729,531
Costs o i T : $ 20,000.00
" Tresa Kosec $26,200.47
Attozﬁey’s Fmal Account of Litigation Proceeds,'Bxhxblt 17. As is clear, there is absolutely no

now totaled $45,000.00. Mt Montoya gave the enfire émount of $26,200.47 to Ms. Kosec. Mr.
Montoya did not advise Ms. Kosee to disburse the money through the Estate of CodyUtley (probate)
and did not advise her to set aside money for Thomas. She has spent all the money,

IV, VARGASETAL.vV, BRIDGESTONE/FIRESTONE, INC.

Wenow get to the case before me which was filed several months after the conolusif;m of fhc
Prudential Life and Workers Compensation matters, and which as you can see, involved a series of
false staternents and misrepresentations by Mr. Montoya and his client.

2003, states that Mr. Montoya will be entitled to 4 contingency payment of 33 1/3%. Representation
Agreement dated March 14, 2003 (First Agreement), Exhibit 18. This Representation Agreement
was signed by Brandon Cummings, a non-lawyer, for Mr, Monfoya on March 14,2003. The First
. Afreement required 3 deposit of $25,000.00 to be paid upon receipt of life msurance or other

Mr 'Montoya to a contingency payment of 40%, Ms. Kosec wag not advised as to which agreement
was in effect and, in fact, Mr. Montoya benefitted himseif by using the portions of each agreement
to reimburse himself costs and fees, For example, Ms. Kosec wrote Mr. Montoya a check for
$25,000.00 from the life insurance proceeds pursuant to the First Agreement. Mr, Montoya then
withheld a 40% contingency fee from the Bumper to Bumper settlement and proposed a 40% fee
recovery from the Bﬁdgestone/Firestone seftlement pursuant to the terms of the Second Agreement.

7 M. Montoya actually recci;red a total of $16,500.00 plus tax in attomeys fee, split
50/50 between Worker and Bmployer/surer. See Exhibit 15 at 2.
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-With regard to this lawsuit, it appears that there were only three viable claims: 1) a wrongful
death claim; 2) Thomas Utley’s loss of guidance/counseling claim; and 3) Ms. Kosee’s loss of
consorlinm claim.” There have been two settfements in this matter. As set forth fully below, the
first settlement was with Bumper to Bumper and the second with Bridgestone/Firestone. None of
. the settlements have béen distributed in a manner - proportionate to the oiau:ns and nothing has gone
to the Estate.

Notwﬁhstandm g the previous documentation in the Prudential L}fo Probate, and Workers
Compensation matter to the contrary, when the Gal. first spoke fo Mr. Montoya on September 4,
2007, he falsely informed her that Mr. Utley and Ms. Kosec had been maried at the fime of M.,
Utley’s death. Only upon further questioning regarding the date/place of the maniage, did Mr.
Montoya finally admit that Mr. Utley and Ms. Kosec had never actually martied buf rather, had a
cominon law mariage because they had lived together in Utah before moving to New Mexico.

When Ms. Oakey asked Mr. Montoya if he had obtained any type of judicial determinationregarding . . . ... .

the legitimacy of the common law marriage, ho told her - untruthfully - that he had. She reguested
a copy of the determination and he promised to provide 1f.

Mz, Montoya subsequently sent Ms. Oakey a letter stating that he had been mistaken and had
never obtained a judicial determiination regarding the Utley/Kosee common law marriage. Letter
from Montoya to Oakey dated September 28, 2007, Exhibit 14. Mr. Montoya reiterated this position
in a letter dated October 19, 2007, Exhibit 2, and further stated that any monies paid to Ms. Kosec
mdwzduallywould have been paid to her in settlement of her loss of consortium, claim only and not
as tho “spouse” of Mr. Utley.

Because Ms. Kosec was not “married” to M1 Utley at the time of his death she does not
quahfy as a statutory beneficiary under New Mexico’s wrongful death statute and should have
received no portion of any wrongful death proceeds. Ses NMSA 1978, Section 41-2-3 (Personal
Representaive to bring action; damages; disitibution of proceeds) which provides that when the
deceased is unmarried, his or her child is enfitled to proceeds of any wrongful death action.

Accordingly, Ms. Kosec’s only claim to the proceeds in this lawsuit was a loss of consortinm
claim which the Gal. recornmended (and T agreed) be valued at 20% - substantially less fhan Ms.
Qakey’s evaluation of Thomas Utley's own loss of guldance/counsohng claim, and the wrongful
death claim.

* A possible fourth claim would be Brionna Kosec’s loss of guldanoe/oounsohng claim
but that issue has never been brought before the Court.
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A. Bumper to Bumné{

On or about Novcmber 2()05 the Utley/Kosec Plaintiffs seitled then clauns against Bumper
to Bumper for $97,500.00. Neither the Utley]Kosec Plaintiffs nor Bumnper-to-Bumper sought Court
approval of the settlement nor did they seek to have Ms. Kosec appointed Conservator on behalf of
Thornas Utley. Upon receipt of the check, Mr. Montoya distributed the monies as follows:

PAYOR | AMOUNT
Montoya Law, Inc. (40% + GRT) © $41,632.50
Costs ' $ 17,806.25
Tresa Kosee $ 38,061 251

Attomey s Final Account of L1t1gationcheeds Exhibit 20. As you can see, Mr. Montoyausedthe . .. |

Second Agreement (40% contingency fee) and withheld $17,806.25 as costs for which there is no
accounting. According to Ms. Kosec, she received the entire $38,061.25 and neither Mr. Montoya

. orMr. Adamson ever instructed her as to how the monies should be disbursed or whether any portion
belonged to Thomas. Thus, Ms. Kosec did not set asidé any mmoney and it has all been spent.

Further, Mr. Vargas, as the Personal Representative in this matter did not insure that any any money was
put info the Bstate.

B. Brideestone/Firéstone Sc’tﬂement

In July 2007, the Utley/Kosec PIalntiffs settled their claim with Defendant
Bndgestone/Fnestone for $550,000.00. Onwhat was likely defense counsel’s insistence, the parties
sought court approval of the settlement and agreed to the appointment of F. Michael Hart as the
Guardian ad Litem. Prior to my signing the Order of Appointment, but in prepavation for the dourt
hearing to consider the proposed seitlement, Mr. Hart coramenced an investigation into the facts of
the case and the termis of the settlement. See Order Regarding Appointment of Guardian Ad Litem,

" Exhibit21. 'The investigation included review of substantial information from the court file,

confidential mediation papers submitted by the parties, document review, and an interview with Ms,
Kosec, Id.

The hearing on the Mofion to Approve Settlementwas originally scheduled for July 23, 2007.
That hearing was vacated and rescheduled for August 30, 2007, Neither Mr. Montoya or Mr. Hart -
were present. Instead, Marcos Gonzales attended the hearing for Mr. Montoya. Mr. Gonzales stated
that Mr. Hart had a potential conflict in this matter because he and Mr. Montoya were representing

1 According to Ms. Kosec, the check was issued to her only and not in her name on
behalf of Thomas as the sole wrongful death beneficiary.




Disciplinary Board
January 31, 2008
Page 10

another client to gethm Therefore, it would be best if Mr. Hart were excused as the GalL and if Ms.
Oakey were appointed instead, Although Mr. ‘Hart did not resist Mr. Montoya’s objections to his
appointment, 1 find Mz, Montoya's request to replace Mr. Hart as the Gal. as exfremely suspect,
particular]ly since Mr. Hart had already completed quiet a bit of work in this matter.

Nevertheless, in- September 2007, Ms. Oakey was appointed the Gal. and a hearing for
Approval of Setflement was scheduled for October 3, 2007. Because of many troubliing issues that
came to light during the GaL's review of the case, the hearing was re-scheduled for December 3,
2007 so that she could complete her investigation.

Mr. Montoya pmpose& 1o the GaL that the $550,000.00 settlement be distributed as follows:

PAYOR , " AMOUNT

Montoya Law, Inc. (40% + GRT) $ 235 125 00
Tresa Kasec $146,089.46
Thomas Utley $ 100,000.00
Costs $ 68,785.54

Attomey’s Final Account of Lifigation Proceeds, Bxhibit 22. - Remarkably, Mr. Montoya had
originaily provided Ms. Oakey with a “Distribution Statement,” Exhibit 23, in which he proposed
that Ms. Kosec receive $450,000.00 (82%j of the settlement for her loss of consortium ¢laim and
" that Thomas receive the remammg $IOO 000.00 (18%) and, that Bnonna Kosec" and the Bstate
recelve nothing, .

With regard to the Bridgestone/Firestone settlement, at the December 3, 2007 hearing, [
found the settlement to be fair and reasonable buf ordered that Ms. Kosec receive no portion of the .
$550,000.00 as she had already received (and spent) far in excess of what I believed her logs of
consortium claim was worth. That amount, less attorneys fee and costs were to be set aside for
Thotnas Utley's sole benefit. Further, T appointed Ms. Oakey as Thomas Utley’s conservator and
she remains the GaL on thé case pending further investigation of the adequacy of Mr. Montoya and
M. Adamson’s attorneys fees and costs which are being withheld in the Court Registry.

5 In fact, despfw all of Mr. Montoya stepresentations that the minor Brionna Kosec is
entitled to a-shave of the proceeds (at least one third according to bis Application for ]
Appointment of Personal Representative), she has not received any monics as a result of the
death of Cody Utley. . .
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CONCLUSION

AL Mr. Mont(_)}z a

Mr. Moritoya actions thronghout the vations matters involving Cody Utley’s Estate have been
with utter disregard for Cody Utley’s only heir and minor child, Thomas Utley. It is particularly
worrisome that none of this might have been discovered without Ms. Oakey’s diligence inreviewing
all the pleadings and materials in this matter in order to make a recommendation to the Court.
Further, the problems are so numerous that I am afraid this letter only touches the tip of the iceberg.

In addition to the myultiple fabrications conceived by Mr. Montoya, and his complete failure

to instruct Ms. Kosec as to how the monies should have been distributed, there are serious problems

-with the attormeys fees and costs already procured and cwiyently bilted in handling these matters. To

date, Mr. Montoya has given Ms, Kosec $138,121.72 in settlement proceeds (life insurance, worker

compehsation and Bumper to Bumper).'® None of the money was put into the Bstate of Cody Utley
. or set aside for Thomas Utley’s benefit.'” Tt has all been spent.

Mr. Montoya received attomeys fees from the Bumper to Bumper settlement in the amount
of § 41,632.50 or 40%. His first proposal for fees from the Bridgestone/Firestone settlement was
Lkewise for 40% or $235,125.00.

Tn addition to the fee issue, the costs that Mr. Montoya deducted are serionsly _questionablé.
Mr. Montoya’s costs have totaled $106,591.79 and there is liftle or no itemization for the costs
claimed particularly with regard to the costs for the life insurance and workers compensation

' This is out of a total of $226,290.30 in settlement proceeds ﬁ’ofn' those three entities.

¥ Mr. Vargas was named as the Personal Representative of the Wrongful Death Estate of
Cody Utley. Presumably, he was named the Personal Representative in this matter in oxder to.. -
obtain jurisdiction in San Miguel county since none of the acts complained of took place there,
and none of the other parties restde there. As the Personal Representative, Mr. Vargas role was
to “simply distribute any proceeds obtained in accordance with the statute[].” See Leyba v,
Whitely, 120 N.M. 768, 178, 907 P.2d 172, 182 (1995). He did not do so. In fact, Mr. Vargas
did nothing except to “defer|[] to Mr. Montoya’s firm on all matters.” RExhibit 1 at page 32, lines
© 5-15. Yet, the Cost Log indicates that Mr. Vargas was paid $795.46 as a “Personal
Representative fee.” Cost Log, Exhibit 24,

I believe there majf be violations of the code of profeésional conduct by Mr. Vargas as
well in his capacity as the Personal Representative of the Estate; however, 1 am focusing this
letter on the multitude of issues involving Mr. Montoya and Mr, Adamson only.
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- settlements. In addifion, there are two particularly troublesome items onMr Montoya’s Cost Log.
in this matter. The first is abx]lmg for $14,977.77 to be paid to BBC Legal Serviees, Inc. (BBC).
Cost Lob, Exh1b1t 24, Mr. Montoya totd Ms Oakey in a létter that:

I have been unable to teach BCC Legal Services {the entire staff is presenﬂy
attending various law schiools and it is no longer in business) and-[I] don’t anticipate
that ¥ will be ablé to do so in a timely fashion.

Letter from Montoya to Oakey dated October 19, 2007, Exhibit2. Ms. Oakeyhas learned that BCC
is Brandon Cummings, the “Litigation Paralegal” in Mr. Montoya’s office who signed numerous
correspondence in this case as well as the First Agreement on behalf of My, Montoya. It is my
understanding that Mr. Cummings, who is not a lawyer, also attended several depositions on behalf
of Mr. Menfoya. Mr. Montoya’s statement that he is unable to reach Mx. Cummings is a complete
misrepresentation. Mr. Cummings is currently a first year law student at UNM and continues to
work for Mr. Montoya. In fact, Mr. Cummings attended the hearing regarding approval of the
setflement on December 3, 2007.

Second, the Cost Log indicates a bill for $40,061.61 to be paid to Robert Sandoval, a private
"investigator. Cost Log, Exhibit 24. When the GaL asked Mr. Montoya for a copy of an ifemized
statement for Mr. Sandoval’s bill, Mr. Montoya told her that he was unsure where Mr. Sandoval was,

that he had no current phone nwmber and that he was “nowhere to be found.” Mr. Montoya then
called Ms. Oakey several weeks later and told her that he had found a phone number for Mr.
Sandoval and had called him a couple of times but that Mr. Sandoval was “dodging” his calls. Itis
somewhat incomprehensible that a person who is owed over $40,000.00 is “dodging” phone calls.
Tnterestingly, Ms. Oakey finally gothold of Mr. Sandoval and he stated that he was not able to locate
- the original itemized billing form because “the computer used during that time period had a virus
and the information contained in itis lost.”’® Letter from Robert Sandoval to Kathleen Oakey dated
Decernber 13, 2007, Exhibif 25.

Tam very concerned about Mr, Montoya’s actions in the state district court case and in the
.Prudential Life, Probate and Workers Cornpensation proceedings. This is a situation where a minor
"had no protection fiom his lawyers and lost virtually all the money due him as a result of the

unforlunate death of his father. Minors are often the ones most in need of protcction in our legal
system and I am concerned about Mr. Montoya’s lack of regard for this minor client’s rights and
welfare. Indeed, Mr. Montoyahas shown a disregard for the legai system, including the courts, other

" Mr. Sandoval was, however, apparently able to recreate an itemized statement and “Te
adjusted” billing invoice for an amount significantly less than the $40,061.61 previously billed.

. Bxhibit 25 (sefting the new bill for $17,951.62), Ihave asked the Gal. to get supporting

documentation for Mr. Sandoval’s ‘newly-created bill as there are more questlons than answers in
the itemized statement.
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: atébmeyé, and clients he supposedly represents. Further, Mr. Montoya’s moral judgment and sense
of ethics in protecting the interests of ten year old Thoinas Utley 1s, at the very Jeast, questionable.

‘B. Ron Adamson, Esq. . S TR

Mr. Adamson has acted.in concert with M. Montoya with regard to all matters in tho probate
matter and in the Vargas et al. v. Bridgestone/Firestone case. FHeé was lsted as co-counsel on the case
and is presumed to have agreed to all actions taken and pleadings filed by Mr. Montoya.

T'am attachirig.copies of all the documents referenced in this lefter as well as others that may
be relevant to your induiry. I appreciate your prompt attention to this matter. Please feel free to
contactme 1f you have any questions or concerns. If the Board would like the names of the attormeys
involved in these various proceedings or if it needs additional documentation, please let me know.

'Sincerely, _
Lontod L O

LINDA M/ VANZI
Distrct Court Tudge

Enclosures




FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT
COUNTY OF SAN MIGUEL
STATE OF NEW MEXICO

Arthur E. Vargas, as Personal Representative of
the Wrongful Death Estate of Cody Utley, Tresa Kosec
Individually, Briona Kosec, Individually, Thomas Utley,
Individually, David Plotsky, as guardian Ad Litem foe
Craig Hopkins, and Tina Lucero, Individually.
Plaintiffs, _
v. CV-2004-445

Brndgestone/Firestone, Inc., a foreign
corporation, f/k/a The Firestone Tire and
Rubber Company, and Buinper to Bumper Auto
salvage, a New Mexico corporation and/or
sole propnietorship.
Defendants.

Petition for Forfeiture of Fees and Disporgement of Fees Received

Kathleen Oakey, on behalf of Thomas Utley, the sole heir to ﬂie Estate of Cody Utley, by and
through atiorney William Riordan, files this “Petition for Forferture of Fees and Disgorgement of
Fees Recerved” and states:

Petitioner’s Anpoinfment

1. Kathleen M.V. Oakey is an attomey licensed to practice law in the State of New Mexico.
2. Kathleen M.V. Qakey (hereafter “petitioner”) was appointed as Guardian Ad Litem by the
- Honorable Linda Vanzi, Disﬁct Judge, on September 14, 2007 1o investigate the settlementreached
1 this case against defendant Bridgestone/Firestone Inc., on behalf of Thomas Utley, 2 minor, and
the sole heir of Cody Utley. Cody Uiley died in an antomobile accident on November 5% 2002, near
Tucumcéjj, N.M. Petitioner was appointed as Conservator of the Estate of Thomas Utley on
December 12, 2007. N '

3. After undertaking her mvestigation, petitioner became aware of certain actions taken by
plaintiffs’ attorneys that were nappropriate and in violation: of New Mexico law and New Mexico
and Supreme Court Rules. ‘ .

4, Subsequently, at the direction of the court, petitioner began investigating other claims and
setﬂen;%}is handled by plaintiffs attorneys in an effort to determine the impact on Thomas Utiley.
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0. Tn addition, to the litigation listed in paragraph 8 above, Montoya, and perhaps Adamsox,
undertook the following representation of Kosec: |

a. Claim forlife insurance benefits from Prudential Financial (policy purchased by Cody
Utley’s employer, Key Energy services, Inc.), on behalf of the estate of Cody Utley.

b. Worker’s compensation claim “In the Estate of Cody Utley {deceased) v. Key
Ernergy Services, Ime, and Liberty Mmmﬂ Hms. Co. WCA No. 03-865947, seeking benefiis due
to the death of Cody Utley. '

10.  Ttisnotknown to Petitioner at this point whether Adamson pariicipated in, or accepted fees
from the workers compensation case that was handled by Montoya, or whether he was involved in
obtaining the life insurance proceeds.

1. Montoyaand Adamsonnegotiated a settlement of the claim against Bumper to Bumper Auto
Salvage in this case, and it is believed that Vargas, as Personal Representative, sipned a release of
all claims of the plaintiffs, including the Estate of Cody Utley, and the individual elaim of Thomas
Utley, apparently without obtaining compensation for Thomas Utley’s clatm.

12. Montoya transferred setttement funds to Tresa Kosec from the Bumperto Bumper settlement
without obiaining court approval of the scttlement, and without any instructions as to what Tresa
Kosec was to do with the funds, if there were funds for Thomas Utley’s, or the claims of the Estate.
13. Monioya and Adamson should have obtained court approval as fo Thomas Utley’s share of
the Tecovery since he was a minor.

14, Montoya and Adamson also negotiated a settlement of the claims against
Bndgestone/Firestone Tire and Rubber Company in this case.

Imvestigation of Bridgestome/Firestone S@ﬁﬁeme;ﬁ '

15, During peiiﬁom?r’s mvestigation of the Brigestone/Firestone settlement as Guardian Ad
Litem, attorney Dennis Montoya misrepresented perfinent facts to the petittoner, including but not
limited to: . .

a Cody Utley and Tresa Kosec’s marital statos;

b. The number and identity of Cody Utley’s heirs;
The validity and value of certain individual claims;
d. The avatlabihty of documents; .
e. The designation of the Prudential Financial life mnsurance policy beneficiary.

o

Mr. Montoya was, likewise, nncooperative and wresponstve and has refused to provide documents
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that petitioner needs to complete her work directed by the court. As of the date of filing this Petition,
Denms Montoya has not made an accounting of the costs of this representation even thotugh New
Mexico law and Supreme.Court Rules require that he do so.

Breach of Fiducizary Duty by Atforney Dennis Momnioya

16.  Petitioner believes that Dennis Montoya breached his fiduciary duty to Thomas Utley, and
to the Estate c_)f Cody Utley, in at least the following respecis: |

a. Msrépresenting that Tresa Kosec was the “wife”, and Briona Kosec was the
“daughter”, of Cody Utley mthe “Application for Informal Appointment of Personal Representative”
- filed on-March 18, 2003 in the cause of action entitled “In The Matter of the Estate of Cody TJtley,
Deceased”, No PB 2003-18-6 {(Eleventh Judicial District), and in the order obtained from the Court -
in that matier. ' .

b. Obtaining insurance proceeds from Prudential Financial on behalf of the Estate of
Cody Utley payable fo Tresa K.osec as Personal Representative of the Estate withouf informing Tresa
Kosec that they were to be used for the sole heir of the estate, Thoﬁlas Utley.

- c Failed to inform Tresa Kosec that she and her daughter Briona were not statutory
heirs; of the Pstate of Cody Utley.

d Representmg to the Workers Compensation Admintstration that Briona was Cody
Utley’s “daughter” .

e. Obtaiming, and conveying, the proceeds of the workers compensation settlement to
Tresa Kosec without informing Tresa Kosec that the proceeds were solely for the benefit of Thomas
Utley, the statutory heir to the estate of Cody Ulley.

£ Misrepresenting to the Court, when obtaining the appointment of Arthur Vargas as
the Personal Representative of the Wrongful Death Estate of Cody Utley, that Tresa Kosec was the
“wife” of Cody Utley, and Briona was Cody Utley’s “danghter”.

. Negotiating settlements withBump er to Bumper and Brndgestone/Firestone on behatf
of the wrongful death estate of Cody Utley and Thomas Utley’s claim for loss of consortivm, (or
“loss of guidance and counseling™), while at the same time negotiating a loss of consortium claim
of Tresa Kosec, and attémpting to obtain a setflement for Briona, Tresa Kosec’s daughter.

h. Not obtaining court approval of the Bumper to Bumper settlement.

1. Not informing Tresa Kosec that Thomas Utley’s portion of the Bumper to Bumper

ettlement was to be used for the sole benefit of Thomas Utley.
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that petitioner needs to complete her work directed by the court. As of the date of filing this Petition,
Dennis Montoya has pot made an accounting of the costs of this representation even though New
Mexico law and Supreme Court Rules require that he do so.

Breach of Fiduciziry Dufy by Attorney Dennis Montoya

16.  Petitioner believes that Dennis Montoya breached his fiduciary duty to Thomas Utley, and
to the Estate of Cody Utley, in at leasi the following respects:

a Msrépresentmg that Tresa Kosec was the “wife”, and Briona Kosec was the
“daughter”, of Cody Utley m the “App]jcatioﬁ for Informal Appointment of Personal Representative”
filed on March 18, 2003 1n the cause of action entitled “In The Matter of the Estate of Cody Utley,
Deceased”, No PB 2003-18-6 (Eleventh Judicial District), and in the order obtained from the Court |
in that matier.

b. Obtaining nsurance proceeds from Prudential Financial on behalf of the Hstate of
Cody Utley payable to Tresa Kosec as Personal Representative of the Estate wathout informing Tresa
Kosec that they were to be used for ﬂie sole hemr of the estate, Thomas Utley.

C. Failed to inform Tresa Kosec that she and her daughter Briona were not statutory
heirs of the Estate of Cody Utley.

d. Representing to the Workers Compensation Administration that Buiona was Cody
Utley’s “daughter” .

e. Obtaming, and conveying, the proceeds of the workers compensation settlement to
Tresa Kosec without informing Tresa Kosec that the proceeds were solely for the benefit of Thomas
Utley, the statutory heir to the estate of Cody Utley.

f Misrepresenting to the Counrt, when obtaining the appointment of Arthur Vargas as
the Personal Representative of the Wrongful Death Estate of Cody Utley, that Tresa Kosec was the
“wife” of Cody Utley, and Briona was Cody Utley’s “danghter”.

| g Negotiating settlements with Bumper to Bumper and Bridgestone/Firestone on behalf
of the wrongful death estate of Cody Utley and Thomas Utley’s claim for loss of consortivin, {or
“loss of guidance and coﬁnseling”), while at the same time negoiiating a loss of consortium claim
of Tresa Kosec, and attempting to obtain a settlement for Biiona, Tresa Kosec’s danghter.

b Not obtaining court approval of the Burnper to Bumper settlement.

L Not informing Tresa Kosec that Thomas Utley’s portion of the Bumper to Bumper

seftiement was to be used for the sole benefit of Thomas Utley.
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1. Failing to insure that all benefits received for Thomas Utley were properly set aside
for Thormas’ interests. ‘

k Trying to obtain an excessive portion of the Brigestone/Firestone settlement for Tresa
Utley at the expense of Thomas Utley. ‘

I. Négoﬁating a settlement that included a claim by Briona Kosec while representing
the interests of the Wrongful Death Estate of Cody Utley and Thomas Utley’s individual claim for
loss of consortium (guidance and counseling).

. m. Making a false claim that Tresa Kosec’s daughter, Briona was entjt]édto a settlement

from Bridgestone/Firestone.

n. Falsely representing the following fo the pefifioner, including but not limited to:
7 1 Tresa Kosec was Cody Utley’s common law spouse, through a judicial
detcn%ﬂnation; _
2. That Tresa Kosec was the named Beneficiary on Cody Utley’s msurance
policy;
3. That he did not know how to contfact Brandon Cummings, who served

as a paralegal inr this case.

17. Monutoya violated the fiduciary duty that he owed to Thomas Utley, and the fiduciary duty that
he owed to the Estate of Cody Utley, of which Thomas Utley was the only heir. Montoya acted with
completed disregard of the mterests of the Estate of Cody Utlej}, and of Thomas Utley in making the
many misrepresentations that he made dunng the time that he was representing the interests of
Thomas Utley, to the dettiment of Thomas Utley. _
18.  Montoya’s breach of fiduciary duty to the estate of Cody Utley and to Thomas Utley, justifies
forfeiture of unpaid attorney fees from the Bridgestone/Firestone settlement, as well as disgorgement
of fees already received fiom the Bumper to Bumper setilement, and the workers compensation
settlement.
19. Montoya’s conduct caused the Guardian Ad Litem to bave to spend an inordinate amount of
time in her work 1nvestigating the settlement because of his actions, and he should be ordered to pay -
that amount. .

Breach of Fidwuciary Duties by Attorney Ronald Adaumsor
20. Based upon information and belief, and by a review of the documents obtained to date, the

Petitioner Attorney Ron Adamson breached his fiduciary dity 16 Thomas Utley, and 1o the estate of

Page 5 of 7




Cody Utley, in at least the following manner:

a. Misrepresenting that Tresa Kosec was the “wife”, and Briona Kosec was the
“daughter” of Cody Utley, inthe “Application for Informal Appointment of Personal Representative”
filed on March 18, 2003 In The Matter of the Esta.té of Cody Utley, Deceased, No. PB 2003-18-6
(Eleventh Judicial District), and in the order obtained from the court in that matter.

b, Misrepresenting to the court in the petition for the appointment of Arthur Vargas as
the Personal Representative of the Estate of Cody Utley, in this cause that Tresa Kosec was the “wife”
of Cody Utley, and Briona was Cody Utley’s “danghter”..

c. Failed to inform Tresa Kosec that she and her daughter Briona were not statutory heirs
of the Bstate of Cody Utley.
d. Negotiating settlements with Bumper to Bumper and Bridgestoné/Firestone on behalf

of the wrongful death estate of Cody Utley and Thomas Utley’s claim for loss of consortium, (or “loss
of guidance and counseling”), while at the same time negotiating a loss of consortium claim of Tresa
Kosec, and attempting to obtain a seftlement for Briona, Tresa Kosec’s danghter.

e. Not obtaining court approval of the Bumper to Bumper settlement.

L f Not mforming Tresa Kosec that Thomas Utley’s portion of the Bumper to Bumper
settlement was to be used for the sole benefit of Thomas Utley.

2. Failing to insure that all benefits received for Thomas Utley were properly set aside
for Thomas’ mterests.

h. Trying to obtain an excesstve portion of the Brigestone/F iIesfone settlement for Tresa
Utley at the expense of Thomas Utley.

1. Negotiating a settlement thatincluded a claim by Briona K osec while representing the
interests of the Wrongful Death Estate of Cody Utley and Thomas Utley’s individual claim for‘ loss
of loss of consortium {guidance and counseling). :

- Making a false claim that Tresa Kosec’s daughter, Briona was entitled to a setﬂemént
from Brdgestone/Firestone. R
21, Adamson violated the fiduciary duty that he owed to Thomas Utley, and the fiduciary duty
that he owed to the Estate of Cody Ultey, of which Thomas Utley was the only heir. Adamson acted
with completed disregard of the interests of the Estate of Cody Utley, and of Thomas Utley in making
the misrepresentations that he made during the tine that he was representing the interests ¢f Thomas
Utley, to the detriment of Thomas Utley.

Page 6 of 7




22.  Adamson’s breach of fiduciary duty to the estate of Cody Utléy and to Thomas Utley, justifies
forfeiture of unpaid aftorﬁ ey fees from the Bridgestone/Firestone settlement, as well as dis gorgement
of fees already received from the Bumper to Bumper seftlement, and any fees that he may have
. received from the workers c.ompensation seftlement. ‘ |

Wherefore, Petitioner requesis that the court:

1. - Determine the proper percentage fee that would ordinanly be paid under the
Representation Agreement(s) signed in this matter.

2. Deterinine the appropriate gross receipts tax that would be due.

3. Determine whether any further litigation costs should be paid and the amount(s) due.

4. Determine what amount of the fee of the Guardian Ad Litem should be paid due to

the failure, or refusal, of Montoya, and Adamson, to tumn over documents necessary
to make that determination. '

5. Determine whether attomey’s fees should be forfeited and the amount to be forfeited.
6. Determine whether fees already paid should be disgorged, by which atiomey, and in
what amount(s).
Respectfully, )
o Wt Ferm
' William Riordan

Attorney for Kathleen M.V. Oakey
Guardian Ad Litem for Thornas Utley, and
Consexvator for the Estale of Thomas Utley
2740 Rio Grande NW
Albugquerque, NM 87104
(505) 255-9300

I certify that a copy of this petition

was matiled this 3rd day of April,

2008, to aftorneys Depnis Montoya,

Ronald Adamson, Arthim Beach,

Arthur Vargas, Joe Wosick,

Charles Vigil, and S(ﬁ/’[fh) Sparks.

AL ﬁg—;ﬂ'ﬂ%
Williair Riordan
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LAW OFFICE OF
WILLIAM F. RIORDAN
2740 Rio Grande NW
ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO 87104
WILLIAM T. RICRDAN TLLEPHONE (505) 255-9300
ATTORNEY AT LAY FAX (505) 243-7947

FORMER CHIEF JUSTICE . Wehsite: wrinrdan.com

NEW MEXICO SUPREME OURT Email: wrinrdanawrinrdag v
/
April 22, 2008

Mr. Charles Vigil, Bsq. 7 A Via fax 768-7395
Rodey Law Firm
P.O. Box 1888
Albuguerque, NV 87103

Re: Vargas v. Bumper to Bumper and Bridgestone/Firestone
Dear M. Vigil;

' Yesterday you called me to tell me that you were thinking about asking Judge Vanzi to recuse
herself from this case because she allegedly made a referral to the New Mexico Disciplinary Board
concenﬁng Mr. Montoya’s conduct in this case. You also said that you were thinkinp, about filing
a motion to disqualify, which of course is a very serious matier. “You stafed that if you decided to
proceed you would give me “what 1 have”.

1 received your telephone message when I returned from my mediation this afiernoon. As I
told you yesterday, I'am not available at 9:00 a.m. or 4:00 p.m. tomorrow (Apnl 23“‘)&)1’ a mecling
with Judge Vanzi, as | bave a previously scheduled full day mediation.

. Lastumight researched the Supreme Court Rules concerning referral to the disciplinary board.
1 do not think that her referral to the disciplinary board, assuming there was a refermal, creates a duty:
to Tecuse, or establishes grounds for disqualification, but reasonable persons may disagree. Rule
Rule 21-300 D(2) of The Code of Judicial Conduct states that she should refer the matter, if she has

certain information.

Also, today [ received your responses to the discovery in Oakey v. Montoya. | have come

to believe that fof whatever reason, your client is only interested in delay.

Since I have not seen “what you have”, nor have I seen the letter that Judge Vanzi sent to the

disciplinary board, T am assuming that thete is nothing

in the letter that requires her recusal. You
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informed me yesterday thaf if you were going to approach the Judge, you would furnish me with
what you have first. [ am oot interested in being involved in a discussion with you and the Judge
where you and she know what you arc talking about and Tam in the dark. If there is information that
require her recusal, Lam suro you would have shared it. _ |

[ am not interested in any meeting with the Judge in which you try to intimidate, or cajole her
into recusing, and think such a meeting would be improper. If you believe that you have grounds

for disqualification, you should file your motion.

Sincerely, -

[/E/QJM\/ /ﬁz——/

William Riordan




ENDORSED
FILED IN MY OFFICE THIGR

SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT _ _ APR 04 ZDOB

COUNTY OF BERNALILLO , %a o

STATE OF NEW MEXICO '

LERK DISTRICT coum
MICHAEL ANGELO PADILLA,

Plaintiff,

vs, No, CV 2007-07860

RON TORRES, MATT ALLEN, and

BERNALILLO COUNTY METROPOLITAN
DETENTION CENTER,

Defendant,

RECUSAL
COMES NOW Linda M. Vanzi, District Judge for Division IV, Second Judicial District

County of Bernalillo and State of New Mexico, and hereby recuses herself from presiding over the
”a.bpye‘—captioned canse,

DATED:  April 4, 2008

LINDA M, VANZ|
LINDA M. VANZI
DISTRICT JUDGE - DIVISION IV

ITHEREBY CERTIFY that a copy of the foregoing was mailed to parties listed on attached
sheet on the date of filing.

BRANDY FISHEL"

BRANDY FISHEL
Trial Court Administrative Assistant
Michael Angelo Padilla

100 John Dantis Rd. SW
Albuguerque, NM 87151

Dennis W. Montoya
P.O.Box 15235 - |
Rio Rancho, NM 87174-0235

E B E] WYE@
AR 07 7008

AW OFFICES
| DERINIS W MONT v |

oy o
- ]
L
H (]
o -
;
H =
N =
@

C.
2
%
o B
q




